
Regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport was held in the Conference 
Room, Municipal Building, 49 State Street, Brockport, New York, October 3, 2005 at 7:00pm. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Morton Wexler, Trustee/Vice Mayor Carrie L. Maziarz, Trustee Maria C. Castańeda, 
Trustee David J. Wagenhauser, Trustee Mary Jo Nayman, DPW Superintendent Harry G. Donahue, 
Building/Zoning Officer Scott C. Zarnstorff, Police Chief Daniel P. Varrenti, Treasurer / Village Manager 
Ian M. Coyle, Clerk Leslie A. Morelli. 
 
EXCUSED:  Planning Board Chair / Economic Development Coordinator Scott Winner  
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Fire Chief Christian A. McCullough, Ken Pike, Robbi Hess (Suburban News), Ray & 
Jackie Morris, Jim & Joan Hamlin, John Lessord, Fred Webster, Jack Wahl, Linda Borrayo, Norm 
GianCursio. 
    
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Wexler called the meeting to order and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
REVIEW OF MEETING MINUTES:  Mayor Wexler called for any additions or corrections to the minutes 
of the regular meeting held September 19, 2005.   
 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the minutes of 
the meeting held September 19, 2005, be approved as amended. 

 
Trustee Castańeda referred to Jimmy Z’s Hawking and Peddling application granted at the last 
meeting. She said she believes the Board should have followed the fee schedule already in place 
rather than make an exception so as not to set a precedent. 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS:  None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1.  Denise Wood of 75 Fair Street gave the Mayor a videotape of what goes on in her backyard (noise   
      from Tac Screw on Burroughs Terrace) so the Board understands her complaints.  Mayor Wexler    
       said a number of Village Officials met with her and visited her at her property.  D. Wood said Tac    
        Screw promised to solve the problem by spring.  D. Wagenhauser said the property owner should 
          take care of this, not necessarily the business owner.  Mayor Wexler said between the property   
            owner and the tenant, they are working to resolve this by keeping the front doors facing D. 
Wood            closed.  She asked if she would be notified if and when the property use changes before 
hand.  She       said if a new company were to locate there, she would not want to go through resolving 
the noise           issues all over again.  Mayor Wexler said that would not be standard practice, but if the 
Village were       made aware of a change or if it required any Planning Board approvals, they would try 
to notify her         as a common courtesy.   
 
GUESTS:  None 
    
DEPARTMENT REPORTS: 
A. PUBLIC WORKS – Superintendent Harry G. Donahue  - No report. 
                                                                                
B.   POLICE DEPARTMENT – Chief Daniel P. Varrenti 

1. Calls for Service – Chief Varrenti reported that they had a busy weekend with 26 arrests, 11 of 
them in the Monroe Avenue and Utica Street vicinity.  He shared that they set up decoy details 
by putting out a bicycle and flowerpots. 
 
Trustee Maziarz asked why they would risk a $500 police bicycle.  Chief Varrenti said it is not a 
Police bike, but an acquired bike.  It is Police Department property per General Municipal Law. 
 Therefore, they (Police Department) are the complainants.  If it isn’t yours, don’t touch it. 

 
Chief Varrenti reported that the recruit officer with the worker’s compensation case never lost 
any time and is on full duty in field training. 
 

2. Watch Your Car Program – Chief Varrenti reported that 23 vehicles were done last week.  He 
said he hopes more people take advantage of this free service.  It can take 10 to 20 percent off 
car insurance.  He said the program would continue with Sgt. Cuzzupoli doing so while on duty 
and weather permitting.  If the weather is poor, they will arrange the use of a Fire truck bay.  
Pre-arranged dates will be advertised in the local paper. 
 

3. Waste Hauler Pick Ups – Chief Varrenti referred to the many complaints regarding garbage 
haulers picking up in the very early morning.  He wrote to John Brugger, Co-Chair of the Code 
Review Committee and recommended that this be addressed in the Village Code.  He 
suggested that the Mayor send a letter to the 3 haulers with permits to pick up in the Village.  
He said he would be happy to draft the language referring to the noise ordinance and not 



picking up before 7am. 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 3, 2005 continued………………………….……………page 2 
 
C. BUILDING / ZONING / CODE ENFORCEMENT - Scott C. Zarnstorff 

1. Staffing – S. Zarnstorff updated the Board that L. Vaughan has become a first time grandfather 
and is on his way back to Brockport.  All are doing well.  New part-time clerk Michelle Johnson 
is recovering from an emergency appendectomy and hopes to return October 24th. 
 

2. Jimmy Z’s Hawking & Peddling Permit – S. Zarnstorff reported that they had a tent (top with 
posts) from the face of the building almost to the street covering the table with pulled pork 
sandwiches.  He said that was not part of the Village Board’s approval at the previous meeting. 
He asked the Village Board for the feedback on the use of the tent since it is over the Village 
sidewalk. 
 
Mayor Wexler and Trustee Maziarz agreed that there was no request for a tent.  Trustee 
Nayman said she was not at the meeting, but read the minutes and watched it on television.  
She concurred that a tent was not discussed, but Jimmy Z. did say the sidewalk operation 
would not go on in inclement weather.  Trustee Wagenhauser said it was clear that it was to be 
a table with warmer with extension cord and that it would be weather dependant.  Trustee 
Maziarz asked if they have an awning.  S. Zarnstorff said he does not think so.  Trustee 
Maziarz asked if the tent was interfering with pedestrian traffic.  S. Zarnstorff said there was 
enough room to go under or around it.  Trustee Wagenhauser said the Board doesn’t need to 
beat the issue to death, but that the applicant did not request it and should address it in some 
way whether that is by requesting such in writing or at a meeting.  S. Zarnstorff said he would 
relay that information. 
 

3. Software – Trustee Maziarz asked S. Zarnstorff if he has yet ordered building / zoning / code 
enforcement software.  They had information and a demonstration on “Inspection Butler” 
software.  S. Zarnstorff said he did some benchmarking and found that other communities have 
had problems with the software.  He said although it may be considered a good price, it needs 
to function well.  Trustee Wagenhauser said if a simple program of data storage and date 
reminders is needed he could buy FoxPro off the shelf.  Trustee Wagenhauser offered to write 
a couple of simple reports.  S. Zarnstorff said he has another company coming out to demo 
“Checklist” software tomorrow at 9am.  He invited his Trustee liaisons to attend if they are 
interested and available.  This software can be geared toward our codes and can generate 
violation letters.  Trustee Maziarz said she also brought back information from NYCOM on 
software that is supposed to be interactive with state and county tax information.  It turns into a 
windows program and brings up reminders.  S. Zarnstorff said that was at substantial cost and 
is geared toward large communities.  Trustee Maziarz encouraged S. Zarnstorff to purchase 
some software and get it up and running.  She said she has been after this for over a year now. 
S. Zarnstorff said he targets being up and running with it by first of the year. 
 

D.  FIRE / AMBULANCE / COMMUNICATIONS - Chief Christian A. McCullough  
       1.   Membership Adds/Drops/Transfers – Chief McCullough asked the Board to consider approving 
             the following drops: Joseph Wertenberg, Byron Green    the following adds: Melissa Cleveland,  
             Justin Bulak.  
 
→   Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried approving the 
previously mentioned adds and drops. 
 

2. Call Load – 1,266 ambulance calls year to date and 676 fire calls year to date.  Chief 
McCullough reported that the department was involved in Monroe County’s disaster drill.  He 
said locally they are pretty well organized.  There were some glitches at the County level.   
 
Chief McCullough shared that October 9 – 15 is Fire Prevention Week with an open house on 
October 9th.  October 28th is the Halloween parade and party sponsored by the Brockport 
Merchants Association and SUNY organizations. 
 

3. Roof – 38 Market Street – Manager Coyle reported that the low bid was accepted and 
approved by the Village Board at their September 26th workshop.  Meeting minutes will be 
forthcoming for the record.  Work should commence within the month.  The Village should find 
out about its funding application within two weeks.  It looks promising. 
 

4. Appoint Richard Dalheim as part time Custodian –  
 
→ Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried appointing Richard 
Dalheim to clean the firehouse a maximum of 10 hours per week for $10 per hour. 
 

5.   Awards – On September 21st I attended an awards luncheon in which Chris McCullough and     
              Jim Coopenberg of the Brockport Fire Department and Hamlin resident Sandy Lapinski 
received              Citizens awards from the Monroe County Sheriff’s Department for their efforts in a 



March 3rd                    incident involving a burning car and the extraction of a person.  Congratulations 
to them! 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 3, 2005 continued………………………………………..page 3 
 
E.  TREASURER / VILLAGE MANAGER - Ian M. Coyle – No report. 
 
F.   CLERK - Leslie A. Morelli 

1.  Parade / Procession Application – Clerk Morelli reviewed the annual application of SUNY           
      Women’s Center for the Take Bake the Night march the evening of Thursday, October 27th.      
       Sidewalks are used.  No street closures are necessary. 

 
→   Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castaneda seconded, unanimously carried to approve the 
procession permit. 
 
G.   ATTORNEY – Thomas D. Calandra / DEPUTY ATTORNEY – Frank A. Aloi (excused) 
 
H.   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – Coordinator R. Scott Winner (excused) 

 
SUPPORT BOARDS REPORTS:  
A.   PLANNING BOARD – Chair R. Scott Winner (excused) 
  
B.   LIBRARY BOARD – President Matthew Minor (absent)   
 
C.   ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS - Chair John Bush (absent)  
 
VILLAGE BOARD REPORTS: 
A.   Trustee/Vice Mayor Maziarz  

1. Cell Phones and Pagers – Trustee Maziarz commented that the Village needs to reduce cell 
phone and pager costs.  She referred to the current bill of $916 per month for 20 cell phones.  
This totals $11,000 per year.  The cost for 21 pagers is $1,200 per year.  She said in 
researching the bills it was found that 5 people have both a cell phone and a pager.  It needs 
to be determined if this is necessary.  She said she would like to see the plans merged, 
number of phones reduced and costs cut.  She said Manager Coyle and Trustee 
Wagenhauser have been looking at different plans. 
 
Chief Varrenti said he would be happy to help with any economy task force on the matter.  He 
further recommended that the Frontier phone bill be given a hard look, as there is money to be 
saved there as well.  He said the Police Department could cut one line and roll it to voice mail. 
  

 
Mayor Wexler said consideration needs to be given to the Fire and Ambulance volunteers 
before eliminating any equipment.  Such communications tools make volunteers a part of the 
process.  Trustee Maziarz said she is not advocating elimination except where there is 
duplication.  Ambulance cell phones and pagers are offset by Third Party Billing and can 
probably be taken out of the equation.  Chief McCullough reminded the Board that Fire 
Department costs are shared by the Towns of Sweden and Clarkson.  The Village’s portion is 
approximately 25%.  Trustee Maziarz said all would be run past Department Heads.  
 
Trustee Maziarz said the Village also needs to take a look at energy savings regarding fuel 
and electricity.  Chief McCullough shared that fire headquarters at 38 Market Street has 
extremely high energy costs due to the building being an “Albatross”.  He said the building 
does not fit the times, is impractical and comes with high energy costs.  He estimated that 
$10,000 per year could be saved in energy costs if it were bulldozed and rebuilt not to mention 
$80,000 for the new roof. 

 
B.   Trustee Castańeda  

1. Parks – Trustee Castaneda mentioned the fencing proposal for the Utica Street playground.  
This would be for child safety since there is easy access to the parking area. 
 

2. Village Advisory Committee – Trustee Castaneda reminded the Board that she proposed the 
formation of a Village Advisory Committee at a recent workshop meeting.  Trustee Maziarz 
asked if she had any further details.  Trustee Castaneda said she is looking at meeting monthly 
or as needed.  Trustee Maziarz suggested a regularly scheduled monthly meeting that could 
be published.  This way all Board members would have the opportunity to attend.  Mayor 
Wexler said the concept is good.  This gives people a forum to come in and express their 
concerns or ideas.  He said he would like Trustee Castaneda to bring forth some names for 
consideration. 

 
⇒ Trustee Castaneda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to authorize the 
formation of a Village Advisory Committee to meet monthly, more details to come. 



 
3. NYCOM Fall Training School – Trustee Castaneda and Trustee Nayman reported that the 

training was worthwhile.  They distributed handouts to the Mayor, Trustees and some 
Department Heads. 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 3, 2005 continued…………………………………………page 
4 
 

4. Code of Ethics / Board – Trustee Castaneda said she believes the Village should adopt a Code 
of Ethics and an Ethics Board. 

 
             Mayor Wexler shared that the Village does have a Code of Ethics.  It is published in the Village 
              Code Book as well as the Village’s Employee Handbook.  It does not, however, have a Board. 
               He said he would agree that such should be established as outlined in the Code. 
 
       5.   State Audit – Trustee Castańeda said another thing that came out of the NYCOM training was  
              that they recommend the Village request a New York State Audit from the Comptroller’s Office. 
 
C. Trustee Wagenhauser  

1. Vandalism – Trustee Wagenhauser expressed concern of the amount of vandalism in the 
Village, particularly in the Monroe Avenue and Utica Street area as reported by Chief Varrenti.  
He said whether it be year round residents, visitors or College students, they should be held 
accountable for their actions.  He said 99% of the College students are great.  Unfortunately, it 
only takes 1% to cause a diminished quality of life. 
 

2. Garbage – Trustee Wagenhauser said he and the Board discussed the pros and cons of 
contracting garbage at the last Village Board workshop.  He said he is awaiting feedback from 
the Village Board.  Then he hopes to present his proposal and call for a public hearing within 
the next two months.  He said this is one way to cut costs and make the greatest Village more 
affordable. 
 

3. Cell Phones – Trustee Wagenhauser said he recently approached I. Coyle and B. Coopenberg 
about evaluating the costs of doing payroll.  He said he hopes to save the Village $2,000 per 
year.  Another cost cutting measure, as Trustee Maziarz discussed, is in the area of phones 
and pagers.  He said the Village seems to be locked into a cell phone contract until July 2006.  
There are 25 cell phones at $36 per month.  He said he believes the Village can save $3,000 
to $4,000 per year if the best plan is obtained.  He said every couple of thousand helps. 

 
D.    Trustee Nayman  

1. NYCOM Fall Training School – Trustee Nayman said the training was very worthwhile.  She 
said she and Trustee Castaneda saved the Village some money by staying at an off site hotel. 
 She suggested others do so whenever possible.  Instead of $210 per night, it was $55 per 
night. 
 

2. Parks – Trustee Nayman said they met with H. Donahue and the parks committee regarding 
equipment needed.  H. Donahue went a step further and got the cost estimates knocked down 
further.  If ordered by November 1st, shipping is free.  Therefore, they would like to concentrate 
now on Evergreen Park by ordering 4 pieces of equipment (turbo tower, duro balance beam, 
curve balance beam, glide slide) at a total cost of $3,670. 
 
Trustee Maziarz suggested waiting to see if there is grant money available.  Trustee Nayman 
reported that Havenwood Tot Lot is the next to be improved.  Assemblyman Reilich has a good 
chance of providing money for this.  Mayor Wexler said Assemblyman Reilich is also looking to 
provide money for repair of the Village Clock on the Methodist Church.  Manager Coyle 
reported that there is $101,000 in the parks line.  Trustee Wagenhauser commended the 
Trustees and Parks Committee for their work. 

 
⇒ Trustee Nayman moved, Trustee Castaneda seconded, unanimously carried authorizing H. 
Donahue to order the equipment outlined for Evergreen Park at a total cost of $3,670. 
 
              Trustee Nayman said the graffiti and damage done to Corbett Park will require 2 pieces to       
                attach to the damaged pieces and repair totaling $3,206.38.  They will consider this at an       
                 upcoming meeting.  Trustee Nayman said it was brought to their attention that there is some 
                  equipment stored at the DPW with missing parts.  H. Donahue and the Parks Committee will 
                  evaluate and try to make use of this equipment. 
 
              Trustee Wagenhauser said he would really like to see families encouraged to remain and 
move               in to the Village.  These parks and playgrounds are important to families and some really 
need                upgrading.  Trustee Castaneda agreed improvements are sorely needed. 
 
              Trustee Nayman said the NYCOM conference discussed handicapped accessible 



playgrounds.               She got a number to call Roy Geiger.  He faxed information to the Village.  S. 
Zarnstorff offered               to check with an advocacy group in Buffalo as well.  He said construction of 
such a playground               is fairly simple and not at high costs.  He said he would be happy to help 
with such an                              endeavor.  Trustee Castaneda thanked him. 
 
 
 
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 3, 2005 continued……………………………………….page 5 
 
              Trustee Maziarz asked if they would be looking at spring installation of the Evergreen Park       
               equipment.  H. Donahue said yes.  She said as Co-Chair of the Good Neighbor Committee 
she               knows that SUNY looks for projects to help with for the Fall Make A Difference Day and 
Spring                Good Neighbor Day.  She asked H. Donahue to provide her with a list of prior 
opportunities for                students. 
            
E.     Mayor Wexler  

1. SUNY Student Volunteers – Mayor Wexler shared that George Rich and 2 SUNY students 
that live at the former Roxbury came to see him to offer their help.  He said there are many 
SUNY  
students that would be happy to help in any way possible.  This could include shoveling or       
 grocery shopping for shut ins.  Mayor Wexler would like to generate a list.  He asked that        
  names and ideas be submitted to him as soon as possible.  
 

2. Accept Resignation of David Hale from Seymour Library Board of Trustees – Mayor Wexler 
shared a letter of resignation from David Hale who was recently appointed to represent the 
Village on the Seymour Library Board of Trustees.  He has a conflict with the meeting night 
and the rest of the Board was unable to change. 

 
⇒ Trustee Castaneda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried to accept the 
resignation of David Hale from the Seymour Library Board of Trustees with regret. 
 

3. Comprehensive Plan Updates – Mayor Wexler asked the Board to be prepared to discuss the 
comprehensive plan updates at the next workshop meeting.  A vote will be scheduled for the 
November 7th meeting. 
 

4. Harvester Park Welcome Center – Wal Mart donation – Mayor Wexler reported that he 
accepted the 3rd of 5 annual donations of $2,000 from Wal Mart for the Harvester Park 
Welcome Center.  Wal Mart’s overall donation will total $10,000. 
 

5. Brockport Merchants Association – Halloween Event – Brockport Merchants Association 
President Josephine Matela requested by letter a $250 contribution from the Village for the 
annual Halloween Event (parade and party) to be held Friday, October 28th.  Trustee 
Wagenhauser commented that kids love it. 

 
⇒ Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, unanimously carried authorizing $250 towards 
the Brockport Merchants Association annual Halloween Event.   
 

6. Accept Resignation of R. Scott Winner as part time Economic Development Coordinator – 
Mayor Wexler read R. Scott Winner’s letter of resignation from his position as part time 
Economic Development Coordinator effective October 7th.  S. Winner has accepted an 
opportunity with Fairport that is full time with benefits and is therefore, giving up the part time 
positions with 3 municipalities.  Mayor Wexler said since he began as Mayor on July 1st, S. 
Winner helped him extensively on the transition from Trustee to Mayor.  He said it has been 
enjoyable, but there is a big difference.  He said he appreciates all of his efforts. 

 
Trustee Maziarz added her appreciation and said it was an honor to work with S. Winner.  He 
has been a tremendous asset to the Village and his loss will be felt immediately. 

 
⇒ Trustee Castaneda moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried that the 
resignation of R. Scott Winner as part time Economic Development Coordinator be accepted with 
regret. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
1.  Joan Hamlin of 50 Park Avenue asked DPW Superintendent Donahue when the new flag would be  
      installed on the Park Avenue flagpole.  H. Donahue said they hope to do so this week. 
 
Mayor Wexler declared a 5-minute recess at 8:20pm. 
 
Executive Session: 
⇒ At 8:25pm Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Castańeda seconded, unanimously carried that the 
Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport enter into an executive session to discuss personnel 



issues (Police Chief Varrenti’s contract), pending litigation (Webster Case) and the selection of a 
Village Prosecutor for Town Court. 
 
I, Leslie A. Morelli, Clerk for the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport, do hereby certify that the 
Board met in an executive session and did discuss the matters as expressed in their motion, and I 
further certify that no formal action regarding public funds was taken thereon. 
 

_________________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD October 3, 2005 continued………………………………..……….page 6 
 
⇒ At 10:20pm Trustee Wagenhauser moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that 
the Board of Trustees of the Village of Brockport exit executive session and re-enter the regular 
meeting. 
 
Appointment of Village Prosecutor for Town of Sweden Court - Mayor Wexler shared that the Board 
has considered the résumé’s of 2 attorneys for the position of Village Prosecutor in Town of Sweden 
Court.  This position will be paid hourly.  The candidates are Michael O’Keefe, Esq. of Medina and 
Christopher Wilcox, Esq. of Brockport. 
 
⇒ Trustee Castaneda moved, Trustee Nayman seconded, Trustees Maziarz and Wagenhauser and 
Mayor Wexler opposed DENIED to appoint Christopher Wilcox, Esq. as Village Prosecutor in Town of 
Sweden Court. 
 
⇒ Trustee Wagenhasuer moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, Trustees Castaneda and Nayman 
opposed, Mayor Wexler in favor, CARRIED to appoint Michael O’Keefe, Esq. as Village Prosecutor in 
Town of Sweden Court. 
 
Trustee Castaneda commented that C. Wilcox, Esq. is more than qualified and is local. 
 
AUDIT: 

 Trustee Maziarz moved, Trustee Wagenhauser seconded, unanimously carried that the bills be 
allowed and paid upon audit. 

 
Village 
Date Check #   Amount 
10/3/05 172168-172208 18,357.69 
9/30/05 172232  2,531.00 
10/3/05 172233  3,020.36 

 
Fire 

       10/3/05 172209-172230 12,270.16 
       10/3/05 172235  276.41 
 

Third Party Billing  
10/3/05 000629-000634 819.39 
10/3/05 000635  87.42 
 
Capital Projects 
10/3/05 001937-001943 20,902.02 
10/3/05 001944  1,690.00 
 
Sewer 
 
Water  

        10/1/05  001233-001240 3,669.25 
        10/3/05  001241  8,462.54 
        10/3/05  001242  21.55  
        
ADJOURNMENT: 

 Mayor Wexler moved, Trustee Maziarz seconded, unanimously carried that the meeting be 
adjourned at 10:25pm. 

 
__________________________ 
Leslie Ann Morelli, Village Clerk 

 


